
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

July 27, 2010 



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION July 27, 2010 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
ROLL CALL: WIGGINS_____    JENSEN_____   NEIL     
 

FAKKEMA     FEY      WASINGER   
    
   DALE    
 
 Page 3 
1. Approval of Minutes – June 22, 2010  
 
 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items 

not otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting.  
 
Page 9 

3.  ADULT ENTERTAINMENT INTERIM ORDINANCE – Public Hearing  
Planning Commission will open a public hearing to consider the Interim Adult 
Entertainment Ordinance.  The Public Hearing will be continued to the August 
24th Planning Commission meeting.   

 
 Page 31 
4. SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM – Public Hearing  

The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing to consider the updates 
to the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program for the years 2011-2016.  
The Planning Commission is expected to forward a recommendation to the City 
Council. 
 

 

1



MINUTES 

 

June 22, 2010 

2



 

Planning Commission  
June 22, 2010 

Page 1 of 4 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION       
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
June 22, 2010 
 
ROLL CALL: Present:  Mark Wiggins, Bruce Neil, Kristi Jensen, Keith Fakkema, and Greg 

Wasinger. 
  Absent:  Nancy Fey and Julie Dale 
  Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior 

Planner, Cac Kamak and Associate Planner Melissa Sartorius. 
 
Chairman Wiggins called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
MINUTES: MR. FAKKEMA MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED, MOTION 

CARRIED TO APPROVE THE May 25, 2010 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
None. 
 
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT INTERIM ORDINANCE – Public Meeting 
This agenda item is intended to provide information only and the Planning Commission will not 
be asked to make any recommendations or take any action at this time. 
 
Mr. Kamak reported the following: 
 
City Council Action - March 23, 2010, the City adopted ordinances that address public nudity 
and licensing of adult entertainment based on a recently expressed interest to open an adult 
entertainment establishment in the area.  As part of adopting these regulations, the City also 
adopted an interim zoning control to restrict such uses to an overlay district.  The ordinances 
are summarized as follows: 
 

• Ordinance Banning Public Nudity:  The City Council adopted an ordinance creating a 
new chapter 6.70 entitled “Nudity in Public Places” to Title 6 Public Peace, Safety 
and Morals of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  The purpose of this ordinance is to 
ban public nudity with appropriate exceptions. Since this is not a land use related 
ordinance it will not be necessary for Planning Commission to review this language. 

• Ordinance adopting Adult Entertainment Licensing and Regulations:  The Ordinance 
created a new chapter 5.20 entitled “”Adult Entertainment” in Title 5 Business 
Licenses and Regulations of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  The regulations 
adopted with this ordinance address how the business should operate and deals 
directly with the details of the how the business is run to mitigate the secondary 
impacts that are caused by such uses. Since this deals with the business licensing 
and related requirements and is not a land use related ordinance it will not be 
necessary for Planning Commission to review this language. 

• Interim Ordinance adopting an Adult Entertainment Overlay Zone: This Ordinance 
created an interim zoning control by adopting an overlay zone that determines where 
such uses may locate.  The interim ordinance created a new chapter 19.52 entitled 
“Adult Entertainment Facilities Overlay Zone”.  The interim created an overlay 
districts that includes C-3, Community Commercial, I-Industrial and PIP, Planned 

3



 

Planning Commission  
June 22, 2010 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Industrial Park zoned property.  The extent of the overlay district was determined by 
creating a buffer of 750 feet from schools, parks and religious institutions and 100 
feet from residentially zoned areas.   

Mr. Kamak explained that RCW 36.70A.390 allows the adoption of interim zoning control 
measure without public hearing as long as one is held within 60 days of the initial adoption.   

The City Council adopted the ordinances as proposed. However, as a result of public comments 
and Council discussion, the City Council encouraged staff to pursue changing the buffer for 
residential uses to 750 feet (originally 100 feet).   
 
City Council Action – May 4, 2010 
The City Council held a public hearing as required by RCW 36.70A.390 within 60 days of the 
initial adoption on May 4, 2010.  The proposed ordinance included the increased buffer for 
residential uses from 100 feet to 750 feet.  The result of the increased buffer eliminated all the 
C-3, Community Commercial zoned property from the overlay zone.  The interim ordinance was 
thus adopted with an overlay district that includes only I, Industrial and PIP, Planned Industrial 
Park properties along Goldie Street.  Map is attached as Attachment 1. 
 
Mr. Kamak noted that the adopted interim ordinance is effective for no longer than six months in 
accordance with RCW 36.70A.390.  Before the end of this period the City must adopt a final 
ordinance that has gone through the regular review process (SEPA review, Planning 
Commission review and recommendation, Department of Commerce notification) or develop a 
work plan for related studies that can extend the time by one or more six-month periods. 
 
Mr. Kamak explained that the process of adopting a final ordinance will include a public hearing 
conducted by the Planning Commission.  The date for the hearing is yet to be determined. 
 
Commission Questions 
Are the properties in the overlay district developed or vacant land?  Mr. Powers indicated that 
there were some that were developed and some that are undeveloped. 
 
If the buffer was increased to 1000 feet would those properties drop out and how was the 750 
foot buffer was chosen?  Mr. Kamak stated that the City could not increase the buffer to a point 
that would exclude all properties to adult entertainment and the 750 foot buffer is the size of the 
buffer that most communities use. 
 
Is it preferable to have adult entertainment uses close or away from the core of the city?  Mr. 
Powers indicated that there are two methods, the concentration method which keeps those land 
uses together and the dispersion method which spreads the uses out. 
 
Are there any studies?  Mr. Kamak indicated that there are many studies that other communities 
have done ranging from land uses and licensing.  Mr. Kamak offered to make copies for 
everyone or that Planning Commissioners can stop by his office to review the materials. 
 
Does Island County have any ordinances for adult uses?  Mr. Powers indicated that they do not 
but have started the process at the staff level.  Mr. Powers also stated that each community’s 
geography is different and each community has a different spatial arrangement of land uses. 
 
What is the timeline was for adopting a final ordinance?  Mr. Kamak stated that the City is going 
to try and complete the final adoption within six months which would require a public hearing 
before the Planning Commission at the July business meeting.   

4



 

Planning Commission  
June 22, 2010 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Where do the police stand on the ordinance?  Mr. Powers indicated that the police department 
was involved in the initial crafting of the interim ordinance. 
 
2010 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – LAND USE CHANGES – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak reported that the 2010 Comprehensive Plan Docket includes three properties for 
which land use changes were requested.  All three properties are owned by the City and the 
requested changes are intended to reflect the proposed use of the properties.   
The three properties are described below: 
 

• Scenic Heights Trailhead site - Land use change from Low Density Residential to 
Public Facilities. The property is located on SW Scenic Heights Street adjacent to SW 
20th Court.  The property was purchased by the City using Conservation Futures Funds 
with the intent to develop it into a trailhead site for the Waterfront Trail.  The existing 
zoning for the property is R-1, Single Family Residential and the existing land use 
designation is Low Density Residential.  The property is proposed to be developed as a 
trailhead site for the Waterfront Trail, which extends from SW Scenic Heights Street to 
Maylor Point.  The site is currently in its planning stages and proposed design includes 
an area with informational displays, a viewing area and some parking.  Construction of 
this project is expected to commence this summer.  Upon completion the trailhead site 
would become part of Oak Harbor’s park system.  The Public Facilities classification is 
intended to accommodate public facilities such as parks, utilities, government offices, 
etc. and therefore would be the most appropriate land use category for the property.  All 
parks in Oak Harbor are designated as Public Facilities and since the trailhead site 
would be part of the park system it would be logical to amend the land uses designation.  
If the requested change is approved the property would be zoned for Public Facilities 
which would permit the intended use by right.  Since construction of the trailhead is 
scheduled to commence prior to a decision on the land use change, the project will need 
a conditional use permit under the current zoning classification.  The hearing for the 
permit is scheduled for the June 18, 2010.  Decision by the Hearing Examiner will take 
approximately 2-3 weeks.  Staff will keep the Planning Commission updated regarding 
the project. 

 
• North Reservoir Site west of Oak Harbor Road near Gun Club Road – Land use 

change from Planned Business Park to Public Facilities. This property is located near 
Gun Club Road in northwest Oak Harbor.  The City currently owns a 10 acre tract but 
will retain only 5 acres to develop it for two water reservoirs.  The five acre tract is 
approximately 1000 feet north of unimproved Gun Club Road between Oak Harbor Road 
and Heller Road.  The existing zoning for the property is Planned Business Park and the 
existing land use designation is Planned Business Park.  The Planned Business Park 
classification is intended to promote the development of larger-scaled master planned 
developments related to office complexes and other similar facilities.  The use of this 
property for a water reservoir does not fit within the purpose of the Planned Business 
Park classification.  The City has identified this site as an appropriate location for 
possibly two water reservoirs to serve Oak Harbor.  The location for this project was 
determined following a technical analysis on the water system.  The Public Facilities 
classification is intended to accommodate public facilities such as parks, utilities, 
government offices etc and therefore would be the best suited land use category for the 
use.  Construction for this project is not expected to commence this year.  If the 
requested change in land use is approved the project will be permitted by right and will 
be required to go through a Type II site plan review process. 

 

5



 

Planning Commission  
June 22, 2010 

Page 4 of 4 
 

• SE corner of SR 20 and Fakkema Road – Land use change from Auto/Industrial 
Commercial to Open Space. The property was formerly referred to as the Boyer 
Property.  The property was purchased through a collaboration of the City, Island 
County, State of Washington and the Navy with the City retaining ownership in fee 
simple.  The property was purchased by the City, County and Navy with the intention to 
restrict development activity due to its location within the flight path. The property is 
located in Accident Potential Sub-district One and Two and is currently zoned C-4, 
Highway Service Commercial with a land use designation of Auto/Industrial Commercial.  
The Parks and Recreation Plan adopted in 2009 identified this property as a potential 
location for an Oak Grove.  Pursuing this idea will require a land use designation of 
Open Space.  Staff is currently working with soil experts to determine the characteristics 
of the soil and its suitability for vegetation.   

 
Commission Discussion 
There was a suggestion to have a program that has an area for each school to cultivate Garry 
Oaks. 
 
BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION, THE MEETING 
WAS ADJOURNED AT 8:15 P.M. 
 

6



NE 16th Avenue

Torpedo R
oad

R
eg

at
ta

 D
riv

e

Cresent Harbor Road

SR
 2

0

N
E G

oldie Street

NE 16th Avenue

NE Easy Street

S
E

 M
aylor S

treet

SW Roeder D
rive

S
W

 S
ce

ni
c 

H
ei

gh
t s

 S
t re

et

S
W

 F
re

un
d  

S
tre

et

SW Talon Loop

SW Eagle Vista Avenue

S
W

 C
ap

ita
l D

riv
e

Waterloo Road

S
R

 2
0

NW 14th Way

NW 13th Court pvt

NW 12th Court pvt

NW 12th Loop pvt

N
W

 Q
ue

st
 S

tre
et

SW 19th Court

SW
 Kim

ball Drive

SW Glenmont Court

B
ay

m
o n

t  
  D

riv
e

Oakmont Lane

Mobius Loop

Erin Park Rd.

S
W

 N
ie

nh
ui

s 
S

tre
et

S
W

 M
ul

be
rr

y 
P

la
ce

S
W

 S
tr

em
le

r D
ri v

e

S
W

 O
liv

e  
S

tr
e e

t

SW Stremler Drive

Ridgeway Drive

M
e r

id
ia

n 
S

tr
ee

t

Spa rro w C
irc

le

R
id

ge
w

ay
 D

riv
e

Greenwood Street

Kiwi Acres Ln

SW Harbor Vis ta CircleSW H
arb

or   
  V

iew

S
W

 V
is

ta
 P

ar
k 

D
riv

e

SW 24th Avenue

SW Capital St.

SE 6th Avenue
SE 6th Avenue

SE 4th Avenue

SE 8th Avenue

S
E

 C
astle P

ark C
t

SE 8th Avenue

S
E

 G
lencoe S

treet

SE 6th Avenue

SE 5th Avenue

S
E

 Jerom
e S

treet

SE Cabot Drive

SE 4th Avenue

SE 3rd Avenue

S
E

 E
ly S

treet

S
E

 F
isher S

treet

SE 2nd Place

S
E

 G
lencoe S

treet

E. Whidbey Avenue

N
W

 Ensign Drive

N
W

 F
a i

rh
av

en
 D

r iv
e

NW 3rd Avenue

S
W

 J
ib

 S
tr

ee
t

SW Judson Drive

S
W

 L
a n

s d
al

e  
S

tre
e t

S
W

 J
ud

so
n 

D
riv

e

SW 4th Court

S
W

 M
uz

z a
ll 

S
tre

et

SW 4th Avenue

S
W

 K
irk

 L
an

e

S
W

 Lopez Drive

SW 6th Avenue

SW 10th Court

SW
 H

arrier St reet

P
ai

nt
er

s 
W

ay

Scheer Ln.

SW Harrie
r C

ircle

SW Castilian Drive

SW
 In

g l
ew

oo
d 

La
ne

S
W

 K
in

gm
a 

C
ou

rt

S
W

 J
ud

so
n 

D
r iv

e

SW
 Castilian Drive

S
W

 M
cC

ro
ha

n 
S

tr
ee

t

S
W

 L
on

do
n  

Te
rr

a c
e

SW Quina
ult

 Stre
et

SW 10th Avenue

SW 9th Avenue

SW 8th Avenue

S
W

 O
tte

rc
re

st
 S

tre
et

S
W

 P
uf

fin
 S

t re
et

SW 7th Avenue

S
W

 Q
u i

lc
en

e 
L a

ne

SW
 Robertson Drive

SW
 Putnam

 Drive

NE 7th Avenue

N
. M

idw
ay B

lvd

SW Periwinkle Lane

SW 2nd Court

S
W

 L
ec

hi
 D

riv
e SW Lechi Drive

SW Ponsteen Drive

S
W

 O
ve

rw
ay

 S
t

NW Loerland Drive

NW Outrigger Loop

NW 2nd Avenue

N
W

 O
xf

or
d 

A
ve

nu
e

NW Outboard Drive

NW 5th Avenue

N
. H

el
le

r 
S

tr
ee

t

NW 5th Avenue

N
W

 M
izzen Drive

N
W

 L
at

ee
n 

S
tr

ee
t

NW Longview Drive

N
E

 E
rn

st
 S

tr
ee

t

N
E

 E
ll i

s 
W

ay

N
W

 L
o n

gv
ie

w
 D

riv
e

N
W

 L
of

to
n  

Lo
o p

N
W

 K
ey

 S
tr

ee
t

N
W

 P
ro

w
 S

tr
ee

t

NW 8th Avenue

NW 9th Place

NW Crosby Avenue

H
el

le
r R

oa
d

SW 17th Avenue

Lato Drive

N
or

m
an

 D
riv

e

Fi
re

side Lane

Tulip Ct

SW 16th Avenue

N
W

 Q
ua

rt
er

ba
ck

 L
oo

p

Crosswoods Drive

S
. H

el
le

r 
S

tr
ee

t

SW
 K

itti
tas

 C
t

SR 20

S
R

 2
0

SW Looking Glass Loop

SW 11th Court

SW 12th Ct

SW
 Swantown Avenue

S
W

 Is
la

nd
er

 L
an

e

S W 13th Avenue

SW
 K

lic
kit

at
 Te

rra
ce

SW
 Kalama Loop

S
W

 K
al

ee
to

n 
Lo

op

SW
 Barrington Drive

S
W

 In
gl

es
id

e  
C

t

SW 14th Ct

N
W

 K
e l

ly
 D

r.

NW Lola Terrace

N
W

 K
at

hl
ee

n 
D

ri v
e

NW Redwing Drive

N
W

 R
ed

w
in

g 
D

riv
e

NW Redwing Drive N
W

 F
al

ls
 C

re
e k

 L
oo

p
N

W
 E

bb
 T

id
e  

C
t

NW Columbia DriveN
W

 F
ai

rh
a v

en
 D

ri v
e

NW Hiyu Drive

Nw 7th Avenue

N W Haslo Place

NW Hiyu Drive

N
W

 F
rig

a t
e 

S
t r

ee
t

N
W

 Is
sa

qu
ah

 S
t

N
W

 E
lw

ha
 S

tr
ee

t

NW Dory Drive

NW Illahee Drive

NW Hyak Drive

NW Cherry Hill Loop pvt

N
W

 A
lm

on
d 

Lo
op

 p
vt

N
W

 C
am

el
la

 L
oo

p 
pv

t

N
.  O

ak
 H

ar
b o

r 
S

tr
ee

t

N
E

 C
ordero P

lace

Robin Lane

Gun Club Road

N
E

 C
ordero P

lace

N
E

 B
ig B

erry Loop pvt
NE 10th Avenue

NW Crosby Avenue

NW
 Cathlamet Drive

N
W

 A
nc

ho
r 

D
riv

e

NW 10th Court

N W 11th Court

NW Dory Drive

NW
   

 C
lip

pe
r D

riv
e

NW 8th Avenue

NW 7th Court

N
W

 C
at

h l
am

et
 D

riv
e

NW Calista Ct.

NW Columbia Drive

N
E

 A
ta

la
nt

a 
   

W
ay

N
. O

ak
 H

ar
b o

r 
S

tre
e t

NE 7th Avenue

Quail Lane

R
ifl

e 
R

oa
d

N
E

 K
oe

tje
 S

tr
ee

t

SR
 2

0

NE 7th Avenue

A
lleyNE 

Ha
rv

es
t D

riv
e

N
E

 Faber  S
t reet

SR
 2

0

NE 4th Avenue

N
E

 Izett S
treet

Alley

NE 3rd Avenue

N
E

 K
ettle S

treet

N
. M

idw
ay B

lvd

N
E

 M
elrose D

rive

N
E

 R
egatta D

rive

NE Sealth PL

N
E

 Q
uill Ter

S
. O

ak
 H

ar
b o

r 
S

tr
ee

t

NE Sumner Drive

N
E

 P
atrick Lane

NE O
'L

ea
ry

 S
tre

et

NE Narrows Avenue
NE R

ikse n W
ay

N
E

 R
onhaar S

treet

NE 11th Avenue

N
E

 N
ash Ter

NE 10th Avenue

NE 9th Avenue

N
E

 M
uller P

lace

N
E

 M
eeter Ln

N
E

 N
etlam

 Ln

N
E

 O
'Leary S

treet

NE 8th Avenue

NE 8th Avenue

NE 7th Place

SW Ft. Nugent Avenue

S
E

 A
tla

s 
S

tr
ee

t

NE 7th Court

NE 6th Avenue

NE 6th Avenue

NE 5th Avenue

NE 4th Avenue

NE 5th Avenue

N
E

 R
onhaar S

treet

NE 4th Avenue

N
E

 Q
ueets S

treet

NE 3rd Avenue

NE 2nd Avenue

N
E

 N
unan Loop

NE 1st Avenue

E. Whidbey Avenue

SE 2nd Court

Maui Ave

S
E

 M
idw

ay B
lvd

S
E

 N
eil S

treet

S
E

 O
'Leary S

treet

S
E

 P
asek S

treet

S
E

 Q
uaker S

treet

SE 8th Avenue S
E

 P
asek S

treet

S
E

 R
egatta D

rive

SE 10th Avenue

SE Pioneer Way

S
E

 M
aylor S

treet

SE 9th Avenue

S
E

 M
idw

ay B
lvd

S
E

 Jensen S
treet

S
E

 Ilw
aco A

lley

SE Barrington Drive

S
E

 H
athaw

ay   S
treet

S
E

 Ireland S
treet

SE Pioneer Way

S
E

 D
ock S

treet SE Fidalgo Avenue

S
E

 E
ly S

treet

SE 11th Avenue

SE Barrington Drive

SE Bayshore DriveS
E

 C
i ty  B

each S
treet

SE Pioneer Way

SW Beeksma Drive

SW
 D

illa
rd

 L
an

e

S
. B

ee
k s

m
a 

D
ri v

e

SW Bayshore Drive

S
W

 B
ar

lo
w

 S
tr

ee
t

S
W

 E
rie

 S
tr

e e
t

S
W

 B
ow

m
e r

 S
tr

ee
t

SW Barrington Drive

S
W

 F
le

et
 S

tre
e t

SW Franklin Ct

SE Pioneer Way

C
ora l S

e a A
v e

SW 10th Avenue

SW 8th Avenue

S
W

 E
ch

o 
Lo

o p

SW 6th Avenue

S
W

 D
ye

r 
S

tr
ee

t

SW 6th Avenue

S
W

 Erie Circle

SW 4th Avenue

SW 3rd Avenue

SW 3rd Avenue

SW 2nd Avenue

SW 2nd Avenue

S
W

 F
es

tiv
al

 C
t

S
W

 C
ru

is
e  

S
tr

ee
t

S
W

 E
st

o n
 C

t

S
W

 D
is

co
ve

ry
 S

tr
ee

t

N
W

 B
os

u n
 S

tr
ee

t

W. Whidbey Avenue

N
W

 C
ap

ta
in

 C
o u

rt

N
W

 D
e l

ta
 C

o u
rt

NW 1st Avenue

SW 1st Avenue

NW 2nd Avenue

NW Kitsap Terrace

N
. H

el
le

r 
S

tr
ee

t

NW Lanyard Loop

W. Whidbey Avenue

SW
 C

ricket Street

G
re

nt
j e

's
 L

n
S

W
 S

ce
ni

c  
H

ei
gh

ts
 S

tr
ee

t

SW 6th Avenue

S
W

 E
rie

 S
tr

ee
t

N
W

 E
ns

ig
n 

D
riv

e

O
a k

 H
a r

b o
r 

R
o a

d

Rebecca Lane

Summit B
lvd

.

Ault Field Road

Yvonne Lane

Linda Lane

Arwin Dr.

Oak Street

G
ol

di
e 

R
oa

d

C
atal i na  D

r.

W. Tulagi Ave.

W. Pioneer Way

To
rp

ed
o 

R
d.

Industrial Ave

C
ol

in
 L

an
e

Technical Drive

Gun Club Road

N
E

 Taftson S
t.

S
W

 N
av

ig
at

or
 L

oo
p

S
W

 F
ai

rh
av

e n
 D

r

SW 3rd Avenue

1

0 600 1,200300 Feet
Ü NAS Whidbey Accident Potential Zones

Subdistrict 1

Subdistrict 2

Subdistrict 3

(CBD) Central Business District

(R-1) Single Family Residential

(R-2) Limited Multi-Family Residential

(R-3) Multi-Family Residential

(R-4) Multi-Family Residential

(R-O) Residential Office

(C-1) Neighborhood Commercial

(CBD-1) Central Business District 1

(CBD-2) Central Business District 2

(I) Industrial

(PF) Public Facilites

(OS) Open Space

Outside City Limits

(C-3) Community Commercial

(C-4) Highway Service Commercial

(C-5) Highway Corridor Commercial

(PBP) Planned Business Park

(PIP) Planned Industrial Park

ZONING

Accident Potential 
Subdistrict II

Adult Entertainment Facilities Overlay Zone
I and PIP Zoning

Outside of 750 Foot Buffers and 750 Foot Residential Buffer

Accident 
Potential    

Subdistrict III

Accident 
Potential    

Subdistrict II

Legend
Navy
City Limits

750' Buffer around all Schools, Parks, & Churches

750' Buffer around Residential

Adult Entertainment Facilities Overlay Zone

Pacels in I & PIP Outside of Buffers

7



Adult Entertainment  

Ordinance 

 

Public Hearing 

 

8



 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 
 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, AICP, SENIOR PLANNER 
 

SUBJECT: ADULT ENTERTAINEMENT ORDINANCE – PUBLIC HEARING 
 

DATE: 7/22/2010 
 

CC: STEVE POWERS, AICP, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
 
 

Introduction:  The Planning Commission is aware of the ordinances that the City 
Council adopted regulating adult entertainment facilities.  Copies of the ordinances and 
supporting legal memorandums were provided to the Planning Commission at the June 
22, 2010 meeting.  This continued discussion of zoning for adult entertainment facilities 
is because the ordinance adopting the Adult Entertainment Overlay Zone was an interim 
ordinance and requires follow up procedures in accordance with RCW 36.70A.390. 

Background: As mentioned above, the City adopted ordinances that address public 
nudity and licensing of adult entertainment and an interim zoning control to restrict such 
uses to an overlay district.  A summary of the ordinances is provided below. 

• Ordinance Banning Public Nudity:  The City Council adopted an ordinance 
creating a new chapter 6.70 entitled “Nudity in Public Places” to Title 6 
Public Peace, Safety and Morals of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  The 
purpose of this ordinance is to ban public nudity with appropriate exceptions 
for children under ten years of age, breastfeeding, nudity in locker rooms, 
hospitals and other similar facilities, and for a licensed entertainer performing 
in an adult entertainment establishments.  Public nudity itself is a conduct 
subject to regulation and a ban on public nudity is a content-neutral restriction 
that regulates conduct and not expression.  Since this is not a land use related 
ordinance it will not be necessary for Planning Commission to review this 
language as per the requirements of RCW 36.70A.390. 

• Ordinance adopting Adult Entertainment Licensing and Regulations:  The 
Ordinance created a new chapter 5.20 entitled “”Adult Entertainment” in Title 
5 Business Licenses and Regulations of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  The 
regulations adopted with this ordinance address how the business should 
operate and the requirements that need to be met to comply with the 
provisions of the chapter.  It deals directly with the details of the how the 

9



2 

business is run to mitigate the secondary impacts that are caused by such uses. 
Since this deals with the business licensing and related requirements and is not 
a land use related ordinance it will not be necessary for Planning Commission 
to review this language as per the requirements of RCW 36.70A.390. 

• Interim Ordinance adopting an Adult Entertainment Overlay Zone: This 
Ordinance created an interim zoning control by adopting an overlay zone that 
determines where such uses may locate.  Such interim ordinances are 
authorized under RCW 36.70A.390.  The interim ordinance created a new 
chapter 19.52 entitled “Adult Entertainment Facilities Overlay Zone”.  The 
interim ordinance entered findings of fact concerning the negative secondary 
impacts of adult entertainment facilities and created and overlay districts that 
includes I-Industrial and PIP, Planned Industrial Park zoned property along 
Goldie Road.   

Discussion:  The interim Adult Entertainment Overlay Zone requires further 
discussion and hearing by the Planning Commission since it is a land use related 
ordinance.  In the discussion below, staff will provide some information on legal cases 
that support the regulation of these land uses and also provide some options to consider 
when locating these facilities in Oak Harbor. 

Regulating Adult Entertainment Facilities:  The regulation of Adult Entertainment 
Facilities also known as Adult-Oriented Businesses (AOB) or Sex-Oriented Businesses 
(SOB) have been debated in the US Supreme and State Courts which have noted that 
such activity constitutes “expressive conduct” entitled to some protection under the state 
and federal constitution1. However, the Supreme Court has also issued a number of 
decisions upholding adult business regulations aimed at reducing “secondary effects” 
such as increased criminal activity, sexual related crime, increased blight, increased 
vacancy rates etc. 

In Young v. American Mini Theaters, Inc., (1976) and City of Renton v. Playtime 
Theaters, Inc., (1986) the Supreme Court concluded that adult oriented business 
regulations which are designed to reduce the secondary effects that such businesses have 
on their surrounding neighborhood are “content neutral” because they are enacted to 
reduce the secondary effects rather than suppress whatever message is being conveyed by 
the performer/entertainer.  The harmful secondary effects the Court identified are: 

1. Increased Crime – rape, sexual assault, prostitution and illegal drug sales 
2. Decreased Property Values – both residential and commercial 
3. Urban Blight – people and businesses fleeing the community 

In adopting an ordinance regulating adult entertainment facilities, the courts do 
require that there must be a reasonable nexus between a municipality’s adult 
entertainment ordinance and the secondary effects evidence upon which it’s based.  
                                                      
1 U.S. Const. amend.1. The state constitution contains a similar provision. Wash. Const. art. 1, § 5. 

10



3 

Although the passage of restrictive zoning ordinances must be supported by sufficient 
factual findings, the Supreme Court has held that this evidence may be borrowed from 
other cities where the secondary effects exist.  Since Oak Harbor does not currently have 
any adult entertainment facilities to determine the secondary impacts, it will have to rely 
on studies performed elsewhere as long as whatever evidence the City relies upon is 
reasonably believed to be relevant to the problem it addresses.  

Based on the above, Staff has provided a collection of summaries of studies 
(Attachment 1) related to the secondary effects of adult entertainment facilities. Some of 
these studies can be reviewed in more detail as the City progresses through the review 
and hearing process.   

Regulating Adult Entertainment Facilities through Zoning:  Zoning that has 
distinguished Adult Entertainment Facilities from other commercial uses has been upheld 
by the courts provided it is done within certain constitutional constraints. There are two 
primary methods of zoning Adult Entertainment Facilities.  One is the “dispersion 
zoning” that regulates the uses by distance separations such as “within 1000 feet of any 
other such establishment or within 500 feet of a residential area”.  The second is the 
“concentration zoning” where a particular use, in this case the Adult Entertainment 
Facility, is prohibited from locating anywhere except in a specific portion of the 
municipality.  Both methods have been held to be constitutionally permissible as 
legitimate “time, place, and manner” restrictions of protected speech2.  Both methods of 
regulation are subject to the three-prong constitutional test listed below: 

1. It should be unrelated to suppressing speech 
2. It must be narrowly tailored to serve a substantial governmental interest 
3. The regulations must permit reasonable alternative channels of 

communication 

The above tests and other checks and balances are discussed in more detail in the 
article “Regulating Adult Entertainment” by Daniel Olsen (Attachment 2).  The nuances 
of each prong of this test are complex but it also points to what zoning cannot do: 

• Zoning cannot completely eliminate Adult Entertainment Facilities 
from the municipality 

• Zoning cannot exclusively permit Adult Entertainment Facilities in an 
area that is “commercially unavailable” 

• Zoning cannot force preexisting Adult Entertainment Facilities to 
cease operation and relocate.  

                                                      
2 City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, 475 U.S. at 52.  Also, 427 U.S. at 63, n.18 (“Reasonable regulations of 
the time, place, and manner of protected speech, where those regulations are necessary to further significant 
governmental interests, are permitted by the First Amendment” citing Kovacs v. Cooper U.S. 77(1949) 
(limitation on use of sound trucks); Cox v. Louisiana, 379 U.S. 559 (1965) (ban on demonstration in or near 
courthouse with the intent to obstruct justice); Grayned v. City of Rockford, 408 U.S. 104 (1972) (ban on 
willful making, on grounds adjacent to school, of any noise which disturbs the good order of the school 
session)   

11



4 

Dispersed versus Concentrated Approach:  The interim ordinance adopted by the City 
Council on May 4, 2010 established an overlay zone over three properties on Goldie 
Road that are zoned I, Industrial and PIP, Planned Industrial Park.  If this were to be 
adopted as the final overlay zone it would be “concentrated zoning” similar to the 
approached in Times Square in New York City and the Combat Zone in Boston.  
However, it should be noted that Oak Harbor’s interim overly zone properties were 
identified using a separation distance from sensitive areas such as schools, parks and 
religious institutions.  The advantages of the concentrated approach are: 

1. Like uses are treated alike – the same uniform district standards apply to all 
uses equally. Any changes to other districts will not have an effect upon the 
adult entertainment facilities within the special overlay district. 

2. Lower administrative costs – once the district is established and development 
standards set, there is not need for costly case-by-case review of adult 
business requests other than the regular site development or building permit 
review. 

3. Control over the total growth of these uses and the development of specific 
new uses – the limits of the area for these uses are defined.  The dispersal 
method may have no upper limit of these uses provided that all separation 
requirements are met. 

4. Easier evaluation of total public services impact – heavier traffic, limited 
parking space, higher police costs and other effects of the adult 
entertainment facilities can be easier to identify if they are concentrated into 
one area. 

The drawbacks of this approach are documented in the land use case study summaries 
provided in Attachment 1.  Studies, such as the ones done in Austin, TX indicate that the 
crime rate is 66% higher in areas where there is a concentration of such uses. 

The dispersion approach (also referred to as the Detroit Model) regulates adult 
entertainment facilities by separating them from each other and other sensitive uses.  
Cities typically will require that adult entertainment facilities be separated from each 
other by a distance that can vary from 300 feet to 2000 feet.  The regulation will also call 
out separations from sensitive areas such as schools, churches and parks.  Some cities 
have also required separations from other establishments that serve alcohol.  This is a 
more popular model since studies show that the secondary effects of these uses such as 
crime rates etc. are less when they are dispersed. 

Options to consider :  In considering the final adoption of an overly zone, it would be 
prudent to explore the various option available to Oak Harbor and then pick an option 
that best meets the needs of the community and satisfy the legal requirements to 
accommodate Adult Entertainment Facilities. 

12



5 

1. Maintain the current properties in the interim ordinance:  This would retain 
the properties identified in the interim ordinance in the overlay zone and will 
not add additional properties.  This will be similar to the concentrated 
approach discussed earlier.  If the City chooses this option, the properties must 
be studied to assure reasonable developability of the property for 
infrastructure and site development. 

2. Dispersion method:  This option will consider dispersing the Adult 
Entertainment Facilities in various locations within the city.  The dispersion 
method is traditionally done by regulating the uses with separation distances 
from sensitive areas and similar uses.  Due to the layout of Oak Harbor, this 
option will be challenging in identifying locations without reducing the 
separation distances significantly from some sensitive areas such as residential 
areas.  Maps have been attached showing some queries on different separation 
distances for the various uses.  Different buffers can be used for the various 
sensitive areas.  A few examples of the combination of different distances 
have been provided for study. 

3. Establish a corridor:  This option will consider adding property to the ones 
that are currently in the interim ordinance.  An example would be the Goldie 
Road corridor.  This will provide more options for the Adult Entertainment 
Facilities and may lessen the burden for the City to prove the availability of 
land for such uses.  This option is also a concentrated approach. 

Process:  In accordance with RCW 36.70A.390 the adopted interim ordinance is 
effective for no longer than six months.  Before the end of this period the City must adopt 
a final ordinance that has gone through the regular review process (SEPA review, 
Planning Commission review and recommendation, Department of Commerce 
notification) or develop a work plan for related studies that can extend the time by one or 
more six-month periods. 

This is the first step toward meeting the requirements of RCW 36.70A.390.  Staff is 
anticipating filing a work plan to extend the time since the process will extend beyond the 
six month period that will end in September.  Staff hopes to narrow down the options by 
the next Planning Commission meeting.  However, SEPA review and Department of 
Commerce notification will add additional time due to the notice and comment periods. 

 

Planning Commission Action:   

• Open Public Hearing 
• Continue the hearing after taking public comments 
• Provide feedback on the options to pursue for the location of Adult 

Entertainment Facilities 

13

























































































Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Churches 250 Foot Buffer)

14



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Churches 500 Foot Buffer)

15



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Churches 750 Foot Buffer)

16



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Schools 1,000 Foot Buffer)

17



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Schools 2,000 Foot Buffer)

18



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Schools 3,000 Foot Buffer)

19



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Parks 500 Foot Buffer)

20



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Parks 1,000 Foot Buffer)

21



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Parks 1,500 Foot Buffer)

22



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Residential 100 Foot Buffer)

23



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Residential 250 Foot Buffer)

24



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Residential 500 Foot Buffer)

25



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
(Residential 750 Foot Buffer)

26



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
Combination #1

(Schools 1,000, Parks 500, Churches 250, and Residential 250 Foot Buffers)

Legend
250_churches

500_parks

1000_schools

250_res27



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
Combination #2

(Schools 2,000, Parks 1,000, Churches 250, and Residential 100 Foot Buffers)

Legend
250_churches

1000_parks

2000_schools

100_res
28



Adult Entertainment Facilities Working Map
Combination #3

(Schools 1,000, Parks 1,000, Churches 500, and Residential 100 Foot Buffers)

Legend
500_churches

1000_parks

1000_schools

100_res29



Six-Year  

Transportation Improvement 

Program (TIP) 

 

Public Hearing 

30



 
8/4/10 Agenda Bill – Six Year TIP 
Page 1 of 2 

Date:    July 27, 2010         
Subject:  Six-Year Transportation  
   Improvement Program 

 
 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 
  Eric Johnston, City Engineer 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
The Planning Commission is requested to hold a public hearing for the 2011-2016 Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and make a recommendation to the City Council  for 
consideration and adoption. 
 
AUTHORITY: 
The City is authorized and required to adopt a six-year Transportation Improvement Program 
and forward the program to the State of Washington in accordance with RCW 35.77.010 
 
DISCUSSION 
The City is required by State law to submit an approved six-year Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP).  The primary purpose of the TIP is to facilitate use of Federal transportation 
funds awarded to the City.  Projects that have federal funding must appear in the six-year TIP at 
the local and state level so that the City can obligate and eventually use the federal funds.  
  
The projects listed on the TIP are coordinated with those listed in the Transportation Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan.  Three projects listed on the previous TIP and in the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan are under construction and will be completed this summer.  
These projects are:  The North Oak Harbor Street Improvement, the NE 7th Avenue Intersection 
Improvement and the Arterial Sidewalk Phase II projects.  The NE 7th Avenue Intersection 
Improvement and Arterial Sidewalk Phase II projects were listed separately in the TIP but were 
included under the North Oak Harbor Street Improvements in the Transportation Element.  No 
new projects have been added to the TIP. 
 
Coordinating projects in the Transportation Comprehensive Plan, the six-year TIP and the 
Capital Facilities Plan improve our communication and coordination with other agencies and 
utility companies and help the City remain focused on a manageable list of transportation 
projects.  Coordination of projects enhances communication with the public on planned 
transportation projects.  
 
The six-year TIP form includes a number of codes and symbols used in the statewide 
management of the regional TIP documents.  A copy of the TIP code key is attached.  A symbol 
in the status column of “S” means funding is secured while a symbol of “P” indicates the project 
is not funded.  As Council is aware, the form of the six-year TIP includes a priority number 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

31



 
8/4/10 Agenda Bill – Six Year TIP 
Page 2 of 2 

associated with each project.  Please note that the priority numbering in the TIP is not intended 
to supersede or be superimposed into the citywide effort of overall capital project prioritization.   
 
As was previously noted, the City is required by State law to submit an approved six-year TIP.  
This submittal process is accomplished in conjunction with the Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization (RTPO).  Once approved by the Council, the City’s TIP is submitted to 
the RTPO.  In turn, the RTPO submits a regional TIP to the State by October of each year.  The 
State then prepares a statewide TIP in January of each year.  The incorporation of the City’s 
projects into this statewide TIP is what enables us to spend Federal funds on local transportation 
projects. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Conduct a public hearing. 
2. Recommend that the City Council adopt the 2011-2016 Six-Year Transportation 

Improvement Program. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)  
 TIP code key 
 Map of improvement locations 

 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38


	AGENDA
	MINUTES
	Adult EntertainmentOrdinance
	Six-YearTransportation ImprovementProgram (TIP)



